Agenda Sheet for City Council:  Committee: Finance & Administration Date: 02/26/2024  Committee Agenda type: Discussion		Date Rec'd	2/12/2024	
		Clerk's File #	OPR 2024-0183	
		Renews #		
Council Meeting Date: 03/11/2024		Cross Ref #	ORD C36499	
Submitting Dept	HUMAN RESOURCES	Project #		
Contact Name/Phone	LAUREN 6239	Bid #		
Contact E-Mail	LBEATTIE@SPOKANECITY.ORG	Requisition #		
Agenda Item Type	Contract Item			
Council Sponsor(s)	MCATHCART BWILKERSON			
Agenda Item Name	0630 2024-2025 PROSECUTING ATTORNEY'S TENTATIVE AGREEMENT (TA)			

#### **Agenda Wording**

Tentative Agreement with AFSCME Local 270-Prosecuting Attorneys for wages and benefits from January 1, 2024, through December 31, 2025.

#### **Summary (Background)**

The City of Spokane Prosecutors CBA expired on December 31, 2023. The Cities negotiating team and (270-PA) met two (2) times starting on November 30, 2023, and January 26, 2024. On January 26, 2024, a Tentative Agreement (TA) was reached and approved by the Prosecutors union (270 -PA). In early February 2024, the Prosecutors voted and approved the TA.

Lease? NO	Grant related? NO	Public Works? NO	
Fiscal Impact			
Approved in Current	Year Budget? YES		
Total Cost	\$		
Current Year Cost	\$		
Subsequent Year(s) C	ost <b>\$</b>		

#### **Narrative**

Included in Briefing paper

Amoun	<u>t</u>	Budget Account		Budget Account	
Select	\$	#			
Select	\$	# Approved by Spokane City Council			
Select	\$	on: 3/11/2024 #			
Select	\$	#			
	\$	#			
	\$	# City Clerk			



Continuation	ontinuation of Wording, Summary, Approvals, and Distribution		
^\\\\\\ Agenda Wording			
Agenua Worumg			
Summary (Backgrou	<u>ind)</u>		
Approvals		Additional Approvals	<u> </u>
Dept Head	RICHARDS, LISA		
Division Director	RICHARDS, LISA		
Accounting Manager	BUSTOS, KIM		
Legal	BEATTIE, LAUREN		
For the Mayor	PICCOLO, MIKE		
Distribution List	<u> </u>		
		•	

## **Committee Agenda Sheet Finance & Administration Committee**

Submitting Department	Human Resou	ırces			
Contact Name & Phone	David Moss 509-625-6383				
Contact Finail	dmoss@spok				
Council Sponsor(s)	arriess@spek	ancerty.org			
Select Agenda Item Type	☐ Consent	⊠ Discussio			
Agenda Item Name	2024-2025 Prosecting Attorney's Tentative Agreement (TA)				
Summary (Background)	The City of Spokane Prosecutors CBA expired on December 31, 2023. The Cities negotiating team and (270-PA) met two (2) times starting on November 30, 2023, and January 26, 2024. On January 26, 2024, a Tentative Agreement (TA) was reached and approved by the Prosecutors union (270 -PA). In early February 2024, the Prosecutors voted and approved the TA.				
		l TA provides f	_	-	on (TCC) 5.1% and 5.8%
	Notable item	s include:			
	1. Two-y 31, 20	year contract t )25.	erm-January 1	l, 2024 throug	h December
	Public	y Amendment c Defender II p ary 1, 2024, thr	ay scale and t	he 270-PA pay	
	Step         Hourly         Est. Biweekly         Est Monthly         Est Annual           1         32.83         2,626         5,712         68,549           2         36.80         2,944         6,403         76,838           3         40.60         3,248         7,064         84,773           4         45.03         3,602         7,835         94,023           5         49.65         3,972         8,639         103,669           6         53.95         4,316         9,387         112,648				
	·	v between the ny scale beginr			
	Step Hourly Est. Biweekly Est Monthly Est Annual				
	1	34.48	2,758	6,000	71,994
	2	38.64	3,092	6,723	80,680
	3	42.63	3,410	7,418	89,011
	4 47.29 3,783 8,228 98,742				
	5 52.14 4,171 9,072 108,868				
	6     56.65     4,532     9,857     118,285				
	Cost of Living	Adjustment:			

	Effective the pay period that includes July 1, 2025, there will be a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) to the steps established October 1, 2024 based on the average of the February 2024-February 2025 CPI-U (Seattle/Tacoma/Bellevue) and the February 2024-February 2025 CPI-W (West B/C0, subject to a minimum wage increase of 2.5% to a maximum wage increase of 4%.
Proposed Council Action &	Approve TA on February 26, 2024
Date: February	
Fiscal Impact:	
Total Annual Cost:	
Approved in current year budge	et? ⊠ Yes □ No □ N/A
Funding Source	e-time 🛮 Recurring
Specify funding source: Various	funds' revenues or reserves.
Expense Occurrence	e-time 🛮 Recurring
Other budget impacts: (revenu	e generating, match requirements, etc.)
Operations Impacts	
City Administration request that	t Council vote to approve the TA at the March 4, 2024

**AGREEMENT** 

**BETWEEN** 

THE CITY OF

SPOKANE AND

THE

# WASHINGTON STATE COUNCIL OF COUNTY AND CITY EMPLOYEES

**LOCAL 270-PA, AFSCME** 

**JANUARY 1, 2024 –** 

**DECEMBER 31, 2025** 

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

EMBODIMEN I	4
PRODUCTIVITY	5
ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION	5
Section A - Bargaining Agent:	5
Section B - Management Employees:	5
ARTICLE II - UNION SECURITY	5
Section A - Union Security:	
Section B - Dues Check-Off:	
Section C - PEOPLE Check-Off:	7
ARTICLE III - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	7
ARTICLE IV - SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES	
Section A - Grievance Procedure:	
Section B - Arbitration:	10
Section C - Processing Grievances:	
Section D - Union Stewards:	
ARTICLE V - SENIORITY	
Section A - Seniority Defined:	
Section B - Seniority List:	
Section C - Layoff and Recall: Section D – Bumping:	
Section E – Bumping.	
ARTICLE VI - WAGES	
ARTICLE VII - HOURS OF WORK	14
ARTICLE VIII - GENERAL PROVISIONS	
Section A - No Discrimination:	
Section B - Discipline:	15
Section C - Predisciplinary Hearings:	
Section D - Union Business:	
Section E - Supplemental Agreement: Section F - Rules:	
Section G - New and Terminated Employees:	
Section H - Labor Management Meetings:	
Section I - Employees' Retirement System:	
Section J - Printing of the Labor Agreement:	
Section K – Incidental Use of Private Vehicles:	22
Section L - Social Security Benefits:	
Section M - Rules and Policies:	
Section N - Contract Administration:	
Section O - City-Required Licenses/Certifications:	
Section P – Tuition Reimbursement:	
ARTICLE IX - HEALTH AND WELL-BEING	
Section A - Medical:	
Section B – Health Risk Assessment:	
Section C – Dental: Section D – Life Insurance:	
Section E – Line insurance.  Section E – Long-Term Disability:	
Section F – Voluntary Life Insurance:	
Section G – Section 125 Program:	
Section H - Use of Leave for Job-Related Injuries:	

Section I - Reporting of Accidents:	
Section J - Employee Assistance Program:	. 25
ARTICLE X - ILLNESS LEAVE	25
Section A - Accrual:	
Section B - Bereavement Leave:	
Section C- Immediate Family:	
Section D - Illness Leave Payment:	26
ARTICLE XI - VACATION LEAVE	. 27
Section A- Vacation Accrual:	
Section B - Holiday During Vacation Leave:	
Section C - Work During Vacation Period:	27
ARTICLE XII - OTHER LEAVE	
Section A - Leave of Absences:	
Section B - Military Leave:	
Section C - Jury Duty:	
Section D - Union Business: Section E - Educational Leave:	
Section F - Natural Disasters:	
ARTICLE XIII - LEAVE SHARINGSection A - Leave Sharing:	
•	
ARTICLE XIV - HOLIDAYS	
Section A - Holidays:	
Section B – Personal Leave:	
ARTICLE XV - CONDUCT OF NEGOTIATIONS	32
ARTICLE XVI - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	33
ARTICLE XVII - SAVING CLAUSE	33
ARTICLE XVIII - DEFERRED COMPENSATION	. 33
ARTICLE XIX – CODE OF ETHICS	. 33
APPENDIX A	. 34
APPENDIX R	35

## AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE CITY OF
SPOKANE
AND THE
WASHINGTON STATE
COUNCIL OF COUNTY
AND CITY EMPLOYEES

**LOCAL 270-PA, AFSCME** 

**JANUARY 1, 2024 –** 

**DECEMBER 31, 2025** 

#### **PREAMBLE**

This Agreement entered into by the City of Spokane, hereinafter referred to as the Employer, and the Washington State Council of County and City Employees, Local 270-PA, AFSCME, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the Union, has as its purpose the promotion of harmonious relations between the Employer and the Union; the establishment of an equitable and peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences; and the establishment of rates of pay, hours of work and other conditions of employment.

**TERMS OF AGREEMENT:** This Agreement shall become effective on the first day of January 2024 and shall continue in full force and effect through the 31st day of December, 2025.

The City and Union agree to negotiate in 2025, for a contract effective January 1, 2026, covering wages, benefits and conditions of employment. These negotiations shall begin upon written notice by either party.

#### **EMBODIMENT**

This Agreement expressed herein in writing constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and no oral statement shall add to or supersede any of its provisions.

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which preceded this Agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands

and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, the City and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the right, and each agree that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to, or not settled, during the course of these negotiations. Such matters shall also not be subject to the grievance procedure.

During the life of this Agreement, maintenance of contract items shall be processed through the provisions of the Supplemental Agreement.

#### **PRODUCTIVITY**

It is mutually agreed that the City management and Local 270-PA shall work together individually and collectively to provide the public with efficient and courteous service, to encourage good attendance of employees, and to promote a climate of labor relations that will aid in achieving a high level of efficiency.

#### **ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION**

#### **Section A - Bargaining Agent:**

The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive Bargaining Agent for the purpose of establishing wages, benefits and other conditions of employment for all employees in the bargaining unit.

#### **Section B - Management Employees:**

Those exempt employees, whom the Union and the City jointly recognize as being part of management, and excluded from the bargaining unit, are specified below.

- A. City Prosecutor
- B. Chief Assistant City Prosecutor

#### **ARTICLE II - UNION SECURITY**

#### **Section A - Union Security:**

The Employer recognizes the Washington State Council of County and City Employees, AFSCME, Council 2 and its affiliated locals (hereinafter UNION) as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative in all matters concerning wages, hours, and other conditions of employment for all employees described in the recognition clause.

The Employer shall remain neutral when communicating with employees about Union membership and direct the employee to discuss union membership with either the Local President or the Union Staff Representative.

The Employer agrees to deduct an amount equal to the membership dues from the salary of employees who request such deduction in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of a properly completed request submitted to the appropriate agency payroll office. Such requests will be made on a Union payroll deduction authorization card.

- A. Upon receipt of the employee's written authorization, the Employer will deduct from the employee's salary an amount equal to the dues required to be a member of the Union. The Employer will provide payments for the deductions to the Union at the Union's official headquarters each pay period.
- B. Forty-five (45) calendar days prior to any change in dues, the Union will provide the Human Resources Department and Payroll Department, the percentage and maximum dues to be deducted from the employee's salary.

The Employer shall provide an electronic copy of the Authorization for Payroll Deduction and Representation card via email to <a href="mailto:C2everett@council2.com">C2everett@council2.com</a> within ten (10) calendar days of the employee executing the document. The Employer shall provide to the Union monthly a complete list of all bargaining unit members that includes: Employee name, work address, home address, work phone, home phone, work email, personal email, birth date, hire date in current bargaining unit, job classification, department, hours worked and monthly base wage.

Union payroll authorization cards are valid whether paper or electronic and either way the City agrees to keep a copy in a secure location which shall be made available for review to the Union.

An employee may revoke their authorization for payroll deduction of payments to the Union by written notice to the Union and the Employer I accordance with the terms and conditions of their signed authorization card. If the Employer determined that it appears that the employee has revoked his or her authorization for payroll deduction in accordance with the terms and conditions of their signed authorization card, every effort will be made to end the deduction effective on the first payroll period following their revocation, and not later than the second payroll period. The Union has the right to challenge any employer action to revoke a dues deduction authorization by filing a grievance under the collective bargaining agreement's grievance procedure.

The Union agrees to indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any liability which may arise by reason of any action taken by the Employer to comply with the provisions of this Article, including reimbursement for any legal fees or expenses incurred in connection with such action. The Employer will promptly notify the Union in writing of any claim, demand, suit or other form of liability asserted against it relating to the implementation of this Article.

#### Section B - Dues Check-Off:

The Employer agrees to deduct, once each month, dues from the pay of those employees who individually request in writing that such deductions be made. The amounts to be deducted shall be certified to the Employer by the Treasurer of the Union, and the aggregate deductions of all employees shall be remitted together with an itemized statement to the Treasurer of the Union.

#### Section C - PEOPLE Check-Off:

The Employer agrees to deduct from the wages of any Union member a PEOPLE (Public Employees Organized to Promote Legislative Equality) deduction as provided for in a written or electronically executed AFSCME authorization. An executed authorization may be revoked by the employee at any time by giving written notice to both the Employer and the Union (AFSCME). The Employer agrees to remit any deductions made pursuant to this provision promptly to the Union (AFSCME) together with an itemized statement showing the name of each employee from whose pay such deductions have been made and the amount deducted during the period covered by the remittance. The Employer will transfer amounts deducted to the AFSCME PEOPLE program.

#### Section D - New Hire Orientation

The Employer agrees to notify the Union Staff Representative in writing of any new positions and new employees at least two (2) working days prior to the orientation of the new employee. A Union official shall, at no loss of pay, be granted up to thirty minutes, at the conclusion of the orientation presentation, to provide each new employee a basic overview of the employees' rights and responsibilities regarding Union membership, dues authorization and Union insurance.

#### **ARTICLE III - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

**Section A:** The City possesses the sole right and authority to operate and direct the employees of the City and its various departments in all aspects, including, but not limited to, all rights and authority exercised by the City prior to the execution of this Agreement. These rights include, but are not limited

#### to, the right:

- 1. to determine the City's mission and policy and to set forth all standards of service offered to the public;
- 2. to plan, direct, control and determine the operation of services to be conducted by the employees of the City.
- 3. to determine the methods, means, and number of personnel needed to carry out the departments' missions;
- 4. to direct the work force;
- 5. to hire, assign, transfer, promote exempt employees;
- 6. to layoff or relieve employees due to lack of work or funds or for other legitimate reasons;
- 7. to move work in or out of the bargaining unit;
- 8. to make, publish and enforce rules and regulations;
- 9. to introduce new or improved methods, equipment, or facilities;
- 10. to contract out for goods and services;
- 11. to take any and all actions necessary to carry out the mission of the City in situations of civil emergency as may be declared by the City.

**Section B:** The parties recognize that this listing of management rights is not exclusive and that management retains the right to exercise exclusive control in any area of employee relations not explicitly made the right of the Union by agreement. The parties acknowledge that the City may take unilateral action in any area as long as such action is not contrary to a provision in this Agreement.

**Section C:** The Mayor and City Council at all times maintain the sole authority to determine the purpose and mission of the City and the amount and allocation of the City's budget.

## ARTICLE IV - SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES (GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE)

#### **Section A - Grievance Procedure:**

A grievance is defined as any dispute involving the interpretation, application or alleged violation of any provisions of this Agreement.

There shall be no retaliation against any employee for exercising their rights to file a grievance under this Article. Should retaliation occur, the Employer will take appropriate action against any employee who retaliates against a Local 270-PA member.

At each step of the grievance process, written notification supplied to the Union by the Employer shall be copied to the Human Resources Director or

the City Administrator's designee.

Within five (5) working days from its occurrence, or the date on which he/she first became aware of it, the aggrieved employee may discuss the complaint with the immediate supervisor, with Union representation present, if desired. The supervisor shall provide a verbal decision within five (5) working days. If settled, no further action shall be taken. If the complaint process is not used then the Union shall have twenty (20) working days from occurrence, or from the day they become aware of it, to initiate Step 1.

**Step 1:** If not resolved on an informal discussion basis, the complaint shall be considered a grievance and shall be reduced to writing on an official grievance form and signed by the aggrieved within fifteen (15) working days from the date of the verbal decision and submitted to the immediate supervisor. Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, the supervisor in this written step shall be that level of supervision that is out of the jurisdiction of Local 270-PA. The immediate supervisor shall provide a written answer within five (5) working days of the date of submission with copies to the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee. If the informal process was not used, the supervisor will have ten (10) working days to respond.

**Step 2:** Provided the grievance is not settled satisfactorily at Step 1, the grievance shall then be submitted in writing to the appropriate department head within five (5) working days. The department head shall submit a written answer within five (5) working days.

**Step 3:** If the grievance is not settled at the department head level, it shall be submitted by the Union Business Representative to the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee within five (5) working days after receipt of the written response from the department head. The Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee shall investigate the matter, meet with the Union Business Representative within ten (10) working days after submission and provide a written answer to the Union Business Representative within five (5) working days after meeting on the issue. Prior to submitting a response to the Union Business Resources Representative, the Human Director Administrator's designee may confer with the City Administrator. The City Administrator shall indicate on the response to the Union Business Representative, his/her concurrence with the response.

Failure of either party to comply with the time limits set forth above will serve to declare the grievance as settled based upon the last request or the last answer received and no further action shall be taken. The time limits as specified in any step may be extended by mutual agreement of the parties.

Any Employer grievance will be filed by the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee with the Union Business Representative at Step 3.

#### **Section B - Arbitration:**

Any matter which has not been resolved by the grievance procedure may be submitted to arbitration by the aggrieved party without the consent of the other party. Within ten (10) working days following the completion of the process the aggrieved party shall notify the other party in writing of their intent to invoke the arbitration process. The parties may meet to discuss a settlement of the issue. If no agreement is reached within twenty (20) working days after notification is given, the moving party shall notify the selected arbitrator of the pending case. The City and Local 270-PA shall agree to a list of three (3) arbitrators to hear, in rotation, any pending cases with the City and Local 270-PA. If no one can be mutually agreed upon, the two sides will request a list of qualified arbitrators from the Public Employment Relations Commission. This list shall contain nine (9) names. The list used shall be developed from the list of nine (9). Should it become necessary to replace one of the arbitrators selected, the process shall be repeated until a list of three (3) is maintained. It is mutually agreed that once selected, the arbitrators selected shall serve until formally replaced. The parties agree:

- 1. The arbitrator should hear the case within twenty (20) working days after the case is presented. The arbitrator shall then make a written report of findings to Local 270-PA and to the City within fifteen (15) working days after the hearing is concluded. The decision of the arbitrator is final and binding on both parties. The arbitrator shall establish the rules of procedure. The final decision of the arbitrator shall be implemented as soon as possible but in any case no later than thirty (30) days after the decision is rendered. The arbitrator shall have no authority to amend, alter or modify this Agreement or its terms and shall limit recommendations solely to the interpretation and application of this Agreement. The above time limits of this provision may be extended by mutual agreement or request of the arbitrator.
- 2. Each grievance or dispute will be submitted separately except when the City and the Union mutually agree to have more than one grievance or dispute submitted to the arbitrator.

3. The expenses of the arbitrator and related stenographic expenses shall be borne by the losing party.

#### **Section C - Processing Grievances:**

Shop stewards may investigate and process grievances during working hours without loss of pay. In order to maintain the progress of work, shop stewards will obtain permission of their immediate supervisor before leaving their place or station of work to investigate a grievance or handle a complaint or other labor matter. Permission of the supervisor will not be unreasonably withheld and complaints concerning alleged improper withholding of permission will be subject to the grievance procedure. Shop stewards shall use judgment in deferring action or investigation on disputes or complaints when the progress of the work is critical.

#### Section D - Union Stewards:

The names of employees selected as stewards and the names of other Union representatives who may represent employees shall be certified in writing to the Employer by the Union.

#### **ARTICLE V - SENIORITY**

#### **Section A - Seniority Defined:**

- 1. **Job Classification Seniority:** The length of continuous service in the employee's job classification. Job classification seniority shall be used in determining vacation preference, layoffs, work assignments, etc.
- 2. **Departmental Seniority:** The length of continuous service in the employee's present department. Departmental seniority shall be the determining factor if the job classification seniority is equal.
- 3. **City Seniority:** The length of cumulative employment with the City of Spokane. In the matter of job openings, vacancies, transfers, new positions, and layoffs, seniority shall be applied.

Cumulative is defined as total service with the City; however, this does not apply to an employee whose employment with the City is terminated for any reason, other than layoff, and is rehired at a later date.

#### **Section B - Seniority List:**

The City shall prepare a list of full time employees showing their seniority and deliver the same to the Union once a year. Upon completion of their

probationary period, new employees shall be added to the seniority list. The list shall reflect the employee's name, date of appointment, departmental seniority and length of service with the City.

#### **Section C - Layoff and Recall:**

- 1. Seniority as defined in Section A above shall be followed if layoffs are to occur. All authorized leave with pay shall be considered as time worked.
- 2. The parties agree that the effect of a layoff is negotiable; therefore, the following language is intended to both clarify and establish procedures for any impending layoffs realized by members of the Bargaining Unit and any subsequent recall. Prior to any actual layoff, Labor/Management will consider acceptable alternatives to layoffs.
  - a. No layoffs shall be executed as long as there are temp/seasonal, part-time or extra help Prosecutors working;
  - b. In the event of a layoff for any reason, Prosecutors shall be laid off in the inverse order of the departmental seniority in their job classification. In the event of a tie in department seniority, then total length of service as an Attorney shall prevail.
  - c. Prosecutors being laid off shall be given written notice of such layoff thirty
    - (30) calendar days prior to the layoff if possible. In no event shall written notice of layoff be less than ten (10) working days.

#### Section D – Bumping:

If a member is laid off and that member has greater seniority than that of other members in a lower job classification or a previously held job classification, he/she may then bump the least senior, lower class member. The member who has been bumped shall then have the same opportunity to bump downward.

#### Section E – Recall:

- 1. Prosecutors who are laid off shall have the first opportunity to fill vacancies in their former classification by order of seniority.
- 2. Prosecutors shall retain all benefits and seniority accrued prior to layoff when recalled to work, minus the time laid off.

- 3. Recall rights under this provision shall be limited to eighteen (18) months from the date of layoff. Prosecutors may refuse a recall once. A second refusal to return to work will remove a Prosecutor from the recall list. Laid off Prosecutors who have been offered work shall have ten (10) working days from the date of notice to accept such recall. Offers of employment off the recall list shall be done in writing either by registered letter to the last known address of the laid off Prosecutor or hand delivered to the Prosecutor.
- 4. Any temporary or extra help work required by a department in a job classification in which there are Prosecutors on layoff shall be offered to laid off Prosecutors.

#### **ARTICLE VI - WAGES**

**Section A - Salary Schedule**: Employees shall be compensated in accordance with the salary schedule in Attachment A. Attachment A is hereby incorporated by reference as part of this Agreement.

**Section B - Pay Periods:** Salaries and wages of employees shall be distributed exclusively by direct deposit into employees' bank or credit union accounts on established pay days.

**Section C – Overtime:** Beginning January 1, 2024, Prosecutors are considered salaried-overtime-eligible under Washington law. Permanent employees shall be compensated at time and one-half (1-1/2) the employee's hourly rate of pay or compensatory time off shall be granted for work under any of the following conditions:

- 1. All work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in any workday.
- 2. All work performed in excess of forty (40) hours in any workweek.
- 3. All work performed on regular days of rest.

**Section D – Compensatory Time:** When an employee works overtime, the employee may elect to choose overtime pay or compensatory time off at time and one-half (1-1/2) for each hour worked. The employee shall inform the immediate supervisor, before the end of the overtime worked, whether overtime pay or compensatory time is desired. When an employee desires to use accrued compensatory time, the supervisor shall make the necessary accommodations to allow for the desired time to be used.

While not mandatory, compensatory time should be taken off within ninety (90) days from the date the overtime is worked. Compensatory time accrual is limited to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) hours. Prior written approval requested by the supervisor from the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee must be received in order to accrue more than one hundred twenty (120) hours. Every year,

compensatory time accrued by the last pay period in September may be cashed out the first pay period of October. The employee shall designate the number of hours to cash out, up to eighty (80). Employees have the option to decline a cash out.

**Section E – Overtime for Seasonal and Temporary Employees:** Seasonal and temporary employees shall be compensated at time and one-half (1-1/2) the employee's regular hourly rate of pay or compensatory time off on an hour and one-half (1-1/2) for hour basis for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours in a day or forty (40) hours in any work week.

#### **ARTICLE VII - HOURS OF WORK**

#### Section A – Normal Office Hours

The normal office hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. The two (2) rest days are Saturday and Sunday. Flex time and/or alternative work schedules must have management's prior approval.

#### 1. Project Pay

The Mayor or designee may authorize a flat biweekly payment to an employee who is required to perform a function or project that may or may not be outside of their normal work responsibilities and which requires the employee to work a substantial amount of extra work time. This sum will be paid each pay period during the work assignment. Requests for approval for the payment shall be in writing and state the circumstances that warrant the payment. The authorization shall require the prior written approval of the department head and the Human Resources Director, who will set the amount of additional compensation, subject to negotiations with the Union, for the function or project. The project will state a beginning and ending timeframe and must not exceed six (6) months. If an extension of time is needed, a new request must be submitted.

#### 2. Variable Work Schedule

Supervisors shall encourage variable work schedules to reduce the number of extra work hours required. Employees are not required to use other leave for occasional absences of less than two hours in a workweek. The variable work schedule shall be flexible enough to accommodate any unforeseen situations that could arise on a daily basis.

#### **ARTICLE VIII - GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### **Section A - No Discrimination:**

The City agrees not to discriminate against any employee on the basis of activity on behalf of, or membership in, the Union. The Union recognizes

its responsibility as bargaining agent and agrees to represent all employees in the bargaining unit without discrimination, interference, restraint or coercion.

The City and the Union agree to comply with State and Federal laws covering discrimination involving employees or applicants for employment.

#### **Section B - Discipline:**

Introduction: disciplinary procedures, 1. The including predisciplinary hearings and access to the grievance procedure, apply only to permanent/ probationary employees. However, a temporary-seasonal employee who is discharged for cause shall be entitled to a predisciplinary hearing if the employee has completed ninety (90) working days of service with the City in the 12-calendar months prior to that act which gave rise to the discipline; that employee shall also have access to the grievance procedure through Step 3. Termination of a probationer on an original-entrance appointment or failure of a probationer on promotion probation shall not be considered a disciplinary action. If the Employer has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee or the public.

The City will continue to administer discipline in accordance with the "Just Cause" concept. Disciplinary action shall include only the following:

Oral reprimand Written reprimand Suspension Demotion for cause Discharge

Should the City choose to initiate the disciplinary process against any employee, such action must be initiated within thirty (30) working days from the date the City became aware of the alleged incident or the right to initiate such disciplinary action may be waived by the Human Resources Department.

2. **Right of Appeal:** Permanent employees (completed probation) shall have the right to take up the suspension and/or discharge as a grievance if probation requirements have been met. Employees who are suspended or terminated by the City of Spokane and exercise their right to appeal under the terms of the grievance procedure shall submit their grievance at Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure with submission of the Official Grievance Form to the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee, with a copy to the appropriate department head of the suspended or terminated employee. Such grievance shall be submitted at

Step 3 by the Union Staff Representative within twenty (20) working days of the termination of employment unless an extension of time is agreed to by the parties.

3. **Right of Petition:** With the exception stated in Section B (1) above, any probationary who has not met the minimum service requirements and is discharged shall have the opportunity, upon request, for a hearing with the

Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee or designated representative from the Human Resources Department. However, this decision shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. The Union representative shall have the opportunity to be present at this hearing. If the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee or the designated representative agrees with the employee and the Union representative that an injustice has occurred, every effort will be made to provide an equitable remedy.

4. **Counseling by Supervisor:** Supervisors are encouraged to counsel their employees when performance or conduct drops below that which is acceptable. Such counseling is informal and should be corrective in nature. At the supervisor's discretion, the counseling session may be reduced to writing either on the Record of Counseling form or in memorandum form. The employee should sign the form or memorandum and shall be given a copy of it. A copy should also be kept in the departmental files; no other copy shall be distributed.

Documentation of a counseling session may not be used as a basis for disciplinary action against the employee. The only basis the documentation serves is to substantiate that the employee was notified of a deficiency and of corrective action needed.

When the deficiency has been corrected to the supervisor's satisfaction, the departmental copy of the Record of Counseling or memorandum shall be destroyed and the employee so notified. Any Record of Counseling or memorandum documenting a counseling session shall be considered null and void one (1) year after its date.

#### **Section C - Predisciplinary Hearings:**

1. The Human Resources Department shall be notified of any need of a predisciplinary hearing. The Human Resources Department shall arrange for the predisciplinary hearing by coordinating the date and time of the hearing with the Union

Staff Representative and the affected department. Each hearing will be held in accordance with the current personnel policy (HR-19) as published by the City of Spokane and signed by the City Administrator.

- 2. If a supervisor conducts an investigatory interview with an employee suspected of wrongdoing, the supervisor at the outset shall notify the employee of his/her right to Union representation.
- 3. Predisciplinary hearings shall be conducted before an employee receives a written reprimand, is suspended, demoted, or discharged for cause. Predisciplinary hearings are not required before an employee is reprimanded orally. Predisciplinary hearings are required also if at the end of the investigation the probable disciplinary action is in doubt.
- 4. Any employee that is asked to submit to a predisciplinary hearing shall be advised of their right to Union representation if they so choose.
- 5. In any predisciplinary hearing, the employee will under no circumstances be required to testify against their interests. The nature of the hearing is such that each employee is encouraged to answer all questions in an open and honest manner so as to provide all parties with a clear understanding of the facts.
- 6. The employee and representative shall be provided any and all documentation relative to the instance(s) giving rise to the predisciplinary hearing. Copies of either a counseling form or a letter of counseling that are an outgrowth of a predisciplinary hearing will be forwarded to the Union office.
- 7. If requested, the employee and representative shall be given a reasonable amount of time to respond to any and all allegations relative to the purpose of the hearing. The employee may respond in writing, if desired, and the predisciplinary hearing shall be recessed until the response is prepared.
- 8. Predisciplinary hearings shall be conducted in a manner to cause the least embarrassment to the employee, and the parties to the predisciplinary hearing shall not discuss any matters from the hearing with other employees, supervisors or management, unless they are specifically involved in the predisciplinary hearing or have information relative to the case

at hand.

- 9. The use of predisciplinary hearings shall supersede and take precedence over any department rule, policy or procedure.
- 10. An employee may be placed on administrative leave with pay pending disciplinary action.
- 11. **Retention of Records:** Disciplinary actions will be kept in the employee's Civil Service file for the time period listed below:

a. Letters of Suspensionb. Letters of Reprimand2 years

After the expiration of the retention time periods and similar incidences have not occurred, records shall be considered void. The employee may also request records that are void be returned to him/her.

The above time periods shall serve as a minimum standard that Management may, based on the severity of the offense and negotiated with the Union, extend by a statement in the disciplinary paperwork.

12. Any discipline issued under this article shall be a confidential matter between the Employer and employee, not to be discussed, posted or otherwise disseminated. Discipline is not meant to embarrass, but to correct.

#### **Section D - Union Business:**

The City agrees that during the life of this agreement that accredited representatives of the Washington State Council of County and City Employees, whether local or international representatives, shall have full and free access to the premises of the City at any time during working hours for the purpose of administering the Agreement, negotiating new contractual items, or investigating problems when such investigations may forestall grievances or disputes.

The Local Union President or designee shall be allowed such time as needed to carry out the duties of the office. This time shall be used to attend meetings, administer the grievance procedure, attend predisciplinary hearings, or any other Union business.

Other matters of mutual concern shall be brought to the labor/management meetings for the purpose of discussing an acceptable method to solve each problem.

The City of Spokane agrees that the President of the Local and specified others, who have been identified to the City in writing, shall have full and free access to the system available on the desktop computers and telephones at anytime during work hours. The work allowed shall be such Union business as appropriate.

The City and the Local agree that any problems that arise from this will be resolved through a labor/management meeting.

#### **Section E - Supplemental Agreement:**

The parties mutually agree that supplemental agreements and/or memoranda of understanding (MOUs) shall be used solely for the purpose of maintenance of contract matters and shall not be used to discuss items of cost unless mutually agreed upon.

This contract may be amended, provided both parties concur. Supplemental agreements and/or MOUs may be completed through negotiations between the parties at any time during the life of the Agreement. Should either party desire to negotiate a matter of this kind, it shall notify the other party in writing of its desire to negotiate. Supplemental agreements and/or MOUs thus completed will be signed by the responsible Union and City officials.

Should either party, having been notified of the proposed supplemental language, not respond within thirty (30) calendar days, the proposed language shall be considered acceptable and shall be forwarded to the second party for signature.

Supplemental agreements and/or MOUs thus completed shall become a part of the larger Agreement and subject to all its provisions. Supplemental agreements and/or MOUs that have been negotiated during the term of an Agreement shall be incorporated into the successor Agreement. Any supplemental agreement or MOU that pre-dates the successor Agreement, and was not incorporated into the successor Agreement, is null and void upon the effective date of the successor Agreement.

#### Section F - Rules:

Employees are expected to maintain good conduct in respect to their positions as public employees. New work rules and existing rules shall be reviewed and signed by the Human Resources Director or the City Administrator's designee. New rules shall be reviewed with the employees and posted on the bulletin board before they shall become effective. It shall be the policy of the City to administer new and existing work rules in a uniform manner. Copies of any new rules or changes in existing rules shall be forwarded to the Union representative and subject to negotiations if requested.

#### **Section G - New and Terminated Employees:**

The City agrees to furnish the Union each month a listing of all new eligible bargaining unit employees who are hired or terminated during the month. Such listing shall contain the names of the employees, along with their job classifications, work locations and home address.

#### **Section H - Labor Management Meetings:**

It is mutually agreed that the negotiating committee for Local 270-PA and the negotiating committee for the City shall conduct regular labor/management meetings for the purpose of resolving problems that may arise. Safety items shall be included as eligible topics for discussion in labor/management meetings. Meetings shall be held by mutual agreement as necessary to conduct business.

#### Section I - Employees' Retirement System:

The City and Local 270-PA agree that Spokane Employees' Retirement System (SERS) benefits provided for bargaining unit employees fall within the intent and meaning of Article I, Section A, of the Agreement, and such benefits shall be negotiated. The Union agrees to all of the Spokane Municipal Code, Chapter 03.05 (as of the effective date of this Agreement), provisions regarding SERS.

#### **SERS Contributions**

The contribution rate to the retirement system as of the effective date of this contract is 11.00%, paid by each employee and matched by the City.

Subject to approval by the Retirement Board and the City Council, in the event that an official actuarial report, prepared at the direction of the Retirement Board, indicates that the current total contributions are less than the employee contributions plus the Actuarially Determined Employer Contribution Rate, the City will increase employee and City retirement contributions by up to 1% of annual pay without further negotiation. Increases pursuant to this section are limited to one increase per calendar year.

Additionally, subject to approval by the Retirement Board and the City Council, in the event that an actuarial report indicates that the Plan has reached 100% funded status the City may decrease employee and City contributions by up to 1% of annual pay without further negotiations. Decreases pursuant to this section are limited to one decrease per calendar year.

#### **SERS Benefit Tiers:**

**Tier 1:** Employees hired prior to January 1, 2009, shall be entitled to elect at the time of retirement whether to receive the Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 3, or Tier 4 benefit. The Tier 1 benefit is described in full in the Spokane

Municipal Code, Section 03.05.160, and the key provisions are as follows:

- 1. Retirement benefit of 2.15% of the employee's highest consecutive two-year average compensation for each year of creditable service, up to a maximum of 64.5% (30 years).
- 2. Employees are vested after 5 years.
- 3. Employees may retire at age 50, with 5 years of creditable service, or at age 62.

**Tier 2 (Rule of 75):** Employees hired on or after January 1, 2009, but before January 1, 2015, shall be entitled to elect at the time of retirement whether to receive the Tier 2, Tier 3, or Tier 4 benefit. The Tier 2 benefit is described in full in the Spokane Municipal Code, Section 03.05.165, and the key provisions are as follows:

- 1. Retirement benefit of 2% of the employee's highest consecutive two-year average compensation for each year of creditable service, up to a maximum of 70% (35 years).
- 2. Employees are vested after 5 years.
- 3. Employees may retire at age 50, with the employee's age plus years of creditable service equaling at least 75, or at age 62.

**Tier 3 (Rule of 80):** Employees hired on or after January 1, 2015, but before January 1, 2018, shall be entitled to elect at the time of retirement whether to receive the Tier 3 or Tier 4 benefit. The Tier 3 benefit is described in full in the Spokane Municipal Code, Section 03.05.166, and the key provisions are as follows:

- 1. Retirement benefit of 2% of the employee's highest consecutive three-year average compensation for each year of creditable service, up to a maximum of 70% (35 years).
- 2. Employees are vested after 7 years.
- 3. Employees may retire at age 50, with the employee's age plus years of creditable service equaling at least 80, or at age 65.

**Tier 4 (Rule of 90):** Employees hired on or after January 1, 2018, shall receive the Tier 4 benefit, assuming all other impacted bargaining units have agreed to adopt Tier 4 by that date. The key provisions of the Tier 4 benefit are as follows:

- 1. Retirement benefit of 2% of the employee's highest consecutive three-year average compensation for each year of creditable service, up to a maximum of 80% (40 years).
- 2. Employees are vested after 7 years.
- 3. Employees may retire at age 50 with no penalty/actuarial reduction with 30 years of service or if the, employee's age plus years of creditable service equaling at least 90, or at age 65.
- 4. If an employee retires with less than 30 years of service, an Early Retirement Factor of 2.5% will be applied for each year under age 65.

5. For calculation of the employee's highest consecutive threeyear average compensation, overtime compensation will be capped at 120% of an employee's annual base salary.

The City and the Union mutually agree that during the life of this Agreement matters concerning employees' retirement benefits and contributions shall be placed with the Retirement Board. Should a new actuary study indicate improvements in benefits without additional contributions, the Union reserves the right to recommend to the Retirement Board that said benefits be implemented.

#### **Section J - Printing of the Labor Agreement:**

The City of Spokane and Local 270-PA mutually agree to print the labor agreement and to share the cost equally.

#### **Section K – Incidental Use of Private Vehicles:**

The prevailing state mileage rate shall be paid to employees who use their private vehicles for official City business when such use has been authorized in advance.

#### **Section L - Social Security Benefits:**

The City agrees to continue payments for Social Security benefits during the term of this Agreement.

#### Section M - Rules and Policies:

Citywide policies signed by the City Administrator shall cover all employees in classifications covered by this Agreement.

Copies of citywide policies shall be forwarded to the Union representative and subject to negotiations if requested. Policies in effect upon the signing of this Agreement, remain in full force.

#### **Section N - Contract Administration:**

The parties agree that the administration of this Agreement and all issues relating to the interpretation, application or meaning of this contract will be handled through the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee of the City of Spokane or a designee from the Human Resources Director. The Union Staff Representative, Local President or their designee shall be responsible for all issues regarding employees covered by this Agreement.

#### **Section O - City-Required Licenses/Certifications:**

With the exception of the basic driver's license, the City shall pay for licenses or certifications required by the City. The City shall continue to pay seven hundred fifteen dollars (\$715.00) per member per year for Continuing Legal Education (CLE). The City shall continue to pay Washington State

and Spokane County Bar dues for each member.

#### Section P – Tuition Reimbursement:

The City and Union agree to follow the City's personnel policy on Tuition Reimbursement, subject to the following modification:

For all courses that are approved for reimbursement after the effective date of this Agreement, the employee must refund the City for tuition reimbursement under the following circumstances:

- 1. The employee voluntarily leaves City employment within two years after receiving tuition reimbursement: and
- 2. The course(s) for which the City reimbursed tuition was completed during the two years prior to the effective date of the voluntary separation. The course(s) shall be considered completed on the date the employee submitted his or her grade to the City for purposes of demonstrating satisfactory completion.

There shall be an exception to this requirement in the event extenuating circumstances require the employee to terminate employment with the City (e.g., employee quits in order to move and take care of sick parent). The employee's request shall be reviewed for approval by the City Prosecutor and the Human Resources Department, and such approval shall not be unreasonably denied.

#### **ARTICLE IX - HEALTH AND WELL-BEING**

#### Section A - Medical:

The City agrees to continue to provide four (4) medical plans: City Plan III, City Plan IV, Group Health I, and Group Health II for the term of this Agreement. The level of coverage provided shall not be reduced during the term of the Agreement without negotiations, even in the event the carrier of said coverage is changed.

The City's contribution to each tier of each medical plan will be set at 4% over the prior year's City contribution, and the employee will be responsible for the remaining premium. Either the City or the Union may request a medical opener to discuss plan design changes should medical rates increase more than 4% a year, or if the City implements any new plans with other bargaining units.

Domestic Partner benefits are available for bargaining unit employees.

#### Section B – Health Risk Assessment:

Employees who participate in an annual online Health Risk Assessment survey will have their monthly benefit administration fee (currently \$25/month and subject to change annually) waived (i.e. it will be paid by the

City department rather than by the employee).

Health Risk Assessment surveys for existing employees shall be completed during Open Enrollment to have the following year's monthly fee waived. For example: Employees who do not complete Health Risk Assessment surveys during Open Enrollment 2020 will be charged the monthly fee January – December 2021.

Health Risk Assessment surveys for new employees shall be completed by the time their medical benefits begin (the first of the month following one month of service) to have the remainder of the year's monthly fee waived.

#### Section C - Dental:

Employees will participate in the Delta Dental PPO program and the City will provide employee and dependent dental coverage for Local 270-PA employees throughout the term of this Agreement.

#### **Section D – Life Insurance:**

Effective January 1, 2010, the City will provide employee life insurance coverage equal to one and one-half (1½) times the annual salary to a maximum of one-hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000) throughout the term of this Agreement.

The City will provide six thousand dollars (\$6,000) life insurance for spouses and two thousand dollars (\$2,000) for dependent children.

#### **Section E – Long-Term Disability:**

The City will provide long-term disability insurance for Local 270-PA employees throughout the term of the Agreement.

#### **Section F – Voluntary Life Insurance:**

The City agrees to offer a voluntary life insurance program throughout the term of this Agreement.

#### **Section G – Section 125 Program:**

The City agrees to offer a Section 125 program throughout the term of this Agreement.

#### **Section H - Use of Leave for Job-Related Injuries:**

An employee may use illness and/or vacation leave when off work due to an on-the-job- injury. The employee has the option of using or not using illness and/or vacation leave; however, once the employee has made a choice, the employee may not subsequently choose another option. Should the employee choose to use illness and/or vacation leave, the employee will not be placed on a leave of absence until the leave(s) chosen are exhausted. Should the employee elect to use vacation leave, that leave may not be used for the buy-back feature; however, vacation leave may be

used up to the percentage of time not covered by time-loss benefits. Should the employee elect to use illness and vacation leave, they would be used serially in the order specified by the employee.

The City shall maintain an industrial insurance program through the Washington State program.

#### **Section I - Reporting of Accidents:**

All injuries that occur during working hours must be reported to the employee's immediate supervisor on the day of injury before he leaves his department of employment. "Employee's Report of Injury" forms will be provided in convenient locations.

#### **Section J - Employee Assistance Program:**

In an effort to fully meet the requirements and expectations of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 and the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City shall provide its employees with an employee assistance program. The City agrees to meet and confer with the Local concerning any proposed changes to the EAP.

#### **ARTICLE X - ILLNESS LEAVE**

#### Section A - Accrual:

Cumulative illness leave with pay shall accrue to each permanent full-time City employee at the rate of four (4) hours for each bi-weekly pay period. Permanent part-time employees shall accrue illness leave on a pro rata basis. In order to accrue sick leave, the employee must be in a paid status for eighty percent (80%) of that pay period. Total accumulation of sick leave shall be unlimited for all employees hired before January 1, 2017. For all employees hired on or after January 1, 2017, illness leave banks are capped at 960 hours (120 days).

Temporary seasonal employees shall accrue one (1) hour of paid sick leave for every forty (40) hours worked, including overtime. Sick leave begins accruing when a temporary seasonal employee starts, however they cannot use their accrued leave until after ninety (90) calendar days of employment. Temporary seasonal employees accrued sick leave may not be capped, however they may carryover their unused accrued sick leave balance into the following year. Temporary seasonal employees unused sick leave benefits are forfeited upon termination of employment. Should a temporary seasonal employee be rehired within twelve (12) months after separating with the City, their previous employment will be counted towards the eligibility waiting period and any forfeited paid sick leave will be restored.

Illness leave may be used anytime by the employee when that employee is incapable of reporting to work due to illness or injury to that employee. Illness leave may also be used in the case of an emergency or serious

illness\* to a member of the employee's immediate family or to care for a sick child under the age of 18. An employee may be required to furnish evidence supporting the need for the use of illness leave.

Under RCW 49.12, employees shall be allowed to choose the type of paid leave they wish to use to care for a parent, parent-in-law, spouse, certified domestic partner, child or grandparent with a serious health condition. Employees may not take advance leave until it has been earned and must abide by the required processes for all leaves. The use of Leave Sharing benefits is subject to the existing requirements and approval process as stated in Article XII. FMLA leave will continue to be governed by City policy HR-23.

\*Serious illness shall not be construed as being defined as hospitalization only.

#### **Section B - Bereavement Leave:**

All permanent employees shall be permitted to use up to and including three (3) days illness leave with full pay in the event of a death in the immediate family. Upon request, two (2) additional days of illness leave shall be granted when the one-way travel is a distance of 250 miles or more. It will be the responsibility of the employee to provide justification for the travel in the event such justification is requested by the employee's supervisor. Additional sick leave may be granted upon request to the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee by an employee.

#### **Section C-Immediate Family:**

A permanent employee's immediate family shall consist of spouse, certified domestic partner, parents (parental in-laws), brothers, sisters, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, children, grandchildren, grandparents or more distant relatives if living as a member of the employee's immediate household.

#### **Section D - Illness Leave Payment:**

- 1. Forty percent (40%) of an employee's accrued illness leave to a maximum of nine hundred sixty (960) hours shall be paid to the City employees upon retirement or to the employee's estate in the event of death. The amount of the accrued illness leave shall be calculated at the employee's rate of pay at the time of retirement or death. The maximum illness leave payment shall be 960 hrs. x 40% = 384 hrs.
- 2. An employee with a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City who terminates service in good standing, (i.e. layoff, two (2) weeks notice from employee), will receive a twenty-five percent (25%) payout of sick leave balance up to a maximum accrual of nine hundred sixty (960) hours.

#### Section E – Washington State Paid Family and Medical Leave

The City of Spokane and Local 270-PA mutually agree that medical and family leave will be administered in compliance with State and Federal regulations.

#### **ARTICLE XI - VACATION LEAVE**

#### **Section A- Vacation Accrual:**

The following vacation allowance is in effect for all permanent full-time employees hired before January 1, 2017:

<u>Service</u>	Bi-Weekly Accrual	<b>Maximum Accrual</b>
First 4 years	3.70	200
Begin 5th through 10th	5.24	273.52
Begin 11th	5.55	289.72
Begin 12th	5.85	305.38
Begin 13th	6.16	321.56
Begin 14th	6.47	337.74
Begin 15th through 19th	6.78	353.92
Begin 20th	8.32	435
Begin 25th	9.00	435
Begin 30th	9.50	435

The following vacation allowance is in effect for all permanent full-time employees hired on or after January 1, 2017:

<u>Service</u>	Bi-Weekly Accrual	<u> Maximum Accrual</u>
First 4 years	3.70	200
Begin 5th through 10th	5.24	273.52
Begin 11th	6.16	321.56

In order to accrue vacation, the employee must be in paid status for eighty percent (80%) of that pay period. Employees who work on a regular basis of twenty (20) or more but less than forty (40) hours per week shall accrue vacation on a pro-rata basis.

After completion of six (6) months' service employees may use vacation up to and including the amount accrued provided approval is obtained by the supervisor. Workload requirements and continuity of City service shall be the compelling factors in scheduling vacations.

#### **Section B - Holiday During Vacation Leave:**

Should an employee be on authorized vacation when a holiday occurs, such holiday shall not be charged against vacation leave.

#### **Section C - Work During Vacation Period:**

Before it becomes necessary to cancel an employee's approved vacation,

attempts will be made to secure a replacement for the employee. Should the employee be required to work during a pre-approved vacation period at the request of the City, the employee may be reimbursed for any such prepaid, nonrefundable loss after providing appropriate documentation to the City Human Resources Department. The Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee will make this determination.

#### **ARTICLE XII - OTHER LEAVE**

#### Section A - Leave of Absences:

Leaves of absence shall be granted by the City for a serious illness or accident for permanent employees.

#### **Section B - Military Leave:**

Any employee who is a member of a reserve force of the United States, or of this State, and who is ordered by the appropriate authorities to attend a training program, or perform other duties under the supervision of the United States, or this State, shall be granted a leave of absence during the period of such activity. The same shall apply to employees who serve the United States as a result of the Selective Service Act.

This section shall be in compliance and in accord with any State or Federal law regarding the subject.

- (a) Members ordered to active military duty by the President of the United States or the Governor of the State of Washington are entitled to pay and benefits as outlined in sections (b.) and (c.) below. This leave is separate from any leave required by state or federal law for training for any branch of the United States Reserve Forces or the National Guard.
- (b) Commencing on the first day of active duty and ending on the last day of active duty, each member's military pay will be supplemented by an amount necessary to equal what the member's pay would be if they were not on active duty. However, in no event may the combined pay exceed their regular City pay.
- (c) Whether and to what extent a member called to active duty is covered by City- sponsored medical, dental, life and long-term disability insurance is governed by the terms of the collective bargaining agreement and insurance contracts as well as by superior state and federal law. Retirement benefits are governed by SMC Ch.3.05.

#### **Section C - Jury Duty:**

City employees as citizens are encouraged to serve on juries when they are called. Employees so called and asked to serve during working hours will experience no loss of pay. Employees called during the day shall report immediately by telephone to their supervisor for instructions as to whether to report for work for the remainder of the day.

#### **Section D - Union Business:**

Members of the Union, selected as Local 270-PA delegates to Union conferences, or conventions, shall be specifically identified by letter not later than ten (10) days prior to proposed absence. These members shall be granted paid leave for the period required to attend such Union functions. Such leave shall not be charged against the employee's leave. This leave would normally not exceed seven (7) working days per calendar year. Any leave of this nature is subject to the City Administrator's approval and shall not be arbitrarily withheld. Local Union negotiating committee members shall be afforded the necessary amount of time, without loss of pay, to conduct contract negotiations.

#### **Section E - Educational Leave:**

Educational leave shall be administered in accordance with the personnel policies and regulations established by the City.

#### Section F - Natural Disasters:

In the event of a natural disaster, fire, or an event creating an emergency beyond the employee's control, the employee may, on request, be granted up to three (3) days leave of absence with full pay not charged to sick leave, vacation, or any other leave bank, to make household adjustments or to make temporary arrangements to resolve the problem. If any question arises, representatives of Local 270-PA and the Human Resources Department will negotiate the matter and their decision will be final.

An employee wishing to receive administrative leave due to a natural disaster must, within forty-eight (48) hours of returning to work, submit a written request on the appropriate form to the department head, furnishing all relevant details. The department head, or designee, shall investigate the circumstances and decide upon the request. The decision may be to approve all, part, or none of the request. Approved administrative leave shall be hour for hour. A copy of the request, whether approved in full or in part or disapproved, shall be sent to the Human Resources Department.

If the request is disapproved or only partially approved, the employee may appeal to the Human Resources Director or City Administrator's designee who will negotiate the matter with Local 270-PA. That decision will be final.

The use of this leave will be restricted to those emergency situations that:
- couldn't be taken care of during the employee's off-duty time;

- physically prohibited the employee from coming to work;
- threatened personal safety or property damage if not taken care of immediately, or;
- caused physical damage to property that required immediate attention or action.

#### **ARTICLE XIII - LEAVE SHARING**

#### **Section A - Leave Sharing:**

Local 270-PA members may receive leave under the Leave Share Program if the employee suffers from a severe or extraordinary non-job related illness or injury which has caused or is likely to cause the employee to go on leave without pay or which may cause the employee to be terminated from City employment.

Local 270-PA members receiving the leave sharing benefit shall receive no more than one hundred and twenty (120) days of such leave during each ten (10) years of service with the City beginning with the date of employment which shall be non-cumulative at the time of applying for leave sharing.

Sick leave, vacation time, personal time, and floating holidays accrued while an employee is in paid leave status due to the use of shared leave must be used as it is earned.

#### **ARTICLE XIV - HOLIDAYS**

#### Section A - Holidays:

1. The following shall be recognized as paid holidays for permanent employees:

New Year's Day January 1

Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday 3<sup>rd</sup> Monday in January Memorial Day Last Monday in May

June 19 Independence Day July 4

Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day

After Thanksgiving

1st Monday in September

4th Thursday in November

4th Friday in November

Christmas Day December 25

Section 2 of this Article

Any day that is designated as a legal holiday by the State legislature or by a State official who has been granted legal authority to declare such a holiday.

a. Sundays shall be considered a day of rest and of

b. When any of the above named holidays occur on a normal business day (Monday through Friday), the offices of the City government shall be closed in observance of such holidays, and the employees of the City with the exception of continuous operation and essential personnel, will be granted time off duty.

#### 2. Floating Holidays:

- All new employees hired between January 2 and June
   30 shall be eligible for thirty-two (32) hours of floating holiday hours for use in that year.
- b. All new employees hired on or after July 1 shall receive sixteen (16) hours of floating holidays for use in that year.
- c. Floating holidays may not be carried over into the next year.
- d. Unused floating holidays will not be paid off at termination.
- e. The floating holidays shall be taken at a time mutually agreeable by the employee and the supervisor.
- f. Employees who work four (4) ten (10) hour shifts may use floating holiday time ten (10) hours at a time.
- g. If the floating holiday request is identified by the employee for reasons of observing a religious holiday, the City will attempt to provide the day off.
- h. Employees shall be allowed to use floating holiday time on an hourly basis.

#### **Section B – Personal Leave:**

All members of Local 270-PA will be credited with forty (40) hours of personal leave at the beginning of each year. Such time is non-cumulative and must be used within the year. There will be no payoff for unused time.

New hires will be credited with personal time as follows:

- a. Forty (40) hours if hired by January 15;
- b. Thirty (30) hours if hired between January 16 and March 31;
- c. Twenty (20) hours if hired between April 1 and June 30;
- d. Ten (10) hours if hired between July 1 and September 30;
- e. Zero (0) hours if hired after September 30.

#### **Use of Personal Leave**

- 2.1 Employees are eligible to use personal leave from the date of hire when approved in advance by their supervisor or the person authorized to grant such leave.
- 2.2 Personal leave shall be scheduled so as not to interfere with the essential

operating requirements of the City. Whenever practicable, personal leave shall be granted at the preference of the employee.

2.3 Employees may take personal leave in the same manner as other leave.

#### **ARTICLE XV - CONDUCT OF NEGOTIATIONS**

#### Section A:

Negotiations will be conducted at a time and place mutually agreeable to the parties.

#### Section B:

The City and Local 270-PA mutually agree to set up a bargaining calendar along with impasse procedure for negotiations. If no agreement is reached by September 15 of the PERC year, the following procedure will be followed:

#### **Impasse Procedure:**

In the event that the City and Local 270-PA fail to reach an agreement, it is mutually agreed that there shall be no strikes, walkouts, slowdowns, lockouts, or other interruptions of work until the dispute is considered by an unbiased third party. It is further agreed that any decision rendered by the third party shall be given due consideration but will not be final and binding on either party.

#### Step 1 - Mediation:

The Union or the City management will present the dispute to the Public Employment Relations Commission or, by mutual agreement, the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service, as soon as possible, but no later than October 7. If no satisfactory agreement is reached in thirty (30) days of mediation, the dispute will be submitted to:

#### **Step 2 - Impasse Panel with Fact-finding:**

A panel of three (3) area residents shall be selected within ten (10) days as follows:

- (a) Local 270-PA shall select one (1) member.
- (b) The City shall select one (1) member.
- (c) The third member to be selected by the first two.

The impasse panel shall gather all facts concerning the dispute and make settlement recommendations to the Union negotiators, the City negotiators and the City Council in Executive Session. It is further agreed that the impasse panel will publish their recommendations in the City newspaper within thirty (30) days.

#### Step 3 - A 30-Day Negotiation Period:

Upon receipt of the impasse panel's recommendations, the City and Local 270-PA agree to a thirty (30) day period in which the two parties shall continue to discuss the dispute and make every effort to resolve the remaining issues. During this thirty (30) day period, the terms

and conditions of the collective bargaining agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

The above time limits may be extended by mutual agreement.

#### **ARTICLE XVI - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS**

#### **Section A - Lockouts:**

No lockout of employees shall be instituted by the Employer during the term of this Agreement.

#### Section B - Strikes:

No strike of any kind shall be caused or sanctioned by the Union during the term of this Agreement.

## ARTICLE XVII - SAVING CLAUSE

In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall at any time be made invalid by applicable legislation, or be declared invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such action shall not invalidate the entire Agreement. It is the intention of the parties thereto that all other provisions not made invalid shall remain in full force and effect.

Upon issuance of such a decision, the parties agree to immediately negotiate a substitute for the invalidated article, section or portion thereof.

## ARTICLE XVIII - DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The City agrees to make a deferred compensation plan available to Local 270-PA members. The City will match up to one hundred twenty dollars (\$120) per month.

In order to qualify for the matching contribution, the employee must be making a contribution to the deferred compensation program. Also, the employee must be making a contribution of the minimum required or at least as much as the matching contribution in order to get the full match.

#### **ARTICLE XIX – CODE OF ETHICS**

The City's Ethics Code, contained in Chapter 01.04A of the Spokane Municipal Code, shall apply to Local 270-PA members.

## APPENDIX A SALARY SCHEDULE

The parties have agreed to the following cost of living increases for the duration of the contract.

Effective the pay period that includes January 1, 2024, a pay plan adjustment as outlined below:

Step	Hourly	Est. Biweekly	Est Monthly	Est Annual
1	32.83	2,626	5,712	68,549
2	36.80	2,944	6,403	76,838
3	40.60	3,248	7,064	84,773
4	45.03	3,602	7,835	94,023
5	49.65	3,972	8,639	103,669
6	53.95	4,316	9,387	112,648

Effective the pay period that includes October 1, 2024, a pay plan adjustment as outlined below:

Step	Hourly	Est. Biweekly	Est Monthly	Est Annual
1	34.48	2,758	6,000	71,994
2	38.64	3,092	6,723	80,680
3	42.63	3,410	7,418	89,011
4	47.29	3,783	8,228	98,742
5	52.14	4,171	9,072	108,868
6	56.65	4,532	9,857	118,285

In 2024, employees will remain at their current step until their annual anniversary date where they will receive a step increase. Step increases will occur annually until the top step is achieved.

**2025:** Effective the pay period that includes 07/01/2025 – a cost of living adjustment to the existing steps and ranges based on the average of the February 2024 – February 2025 CPI-U (Seattle/Tacoma/Bellevue) and the February 2024 – February 2025 CPI-W (West B/C), subject to a minimum wage increase of two and one half percent (2.5%) and a maximum wage increase of four percent (4.0%).

#### <u>APPENDIX B</u>

### LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF SPOKANE AND LOCAL 270-PA

The City and the Union understand and agree that the monies allocated for medical, dental and life insurances are the result of negotiated settlements where benefit levels are increased at the cost of wages. This being the case, both parties are in agreement that mutual trust and understanding are the cornerstones of the relations between the two parties. As a result of this understanding, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. The parties agree to set up a committee of equal numbers to review all pertinent documents and report to the negotiating committees of both parties on suggested changes for next year.
- 2. The City agrees to provide the committee all pertinent documentation and experience data (premiums, claims, reserves) for medical, dental, and life insurance. The City will, when appropriate, arrange for representatives of the carriers to meet with the committee.
- 3. The City shall provide to the Union Staff Representative quotes for all insurances that the City receives from the insurance carriers. Copies of the documents received from the carriers to the City shall be forwarded within five (5) working days to the Union Staff Representative. Under no circumstances shall the proposed rates for all insurances be provided later than September 1st of each year.

### **SIGNATURE PAGE**

SIGNED AND DATED THIS 26th DAY OF _	March 2024.
FOR THE CITY:	FOR THE UNION
Lisa Brown, Mayor	<u>llwa Hostetler</u> Anna Hostetler, President
<u>Midual Ormsby</u> Michael Ormsby, Human Resources	
Terri Pfister, City Clerk	OF SPOR
Approved as to Form:	
Michael J. Piccolo, City Attorney	MASSION

Status: Completed

808 W. Spokane Falls Blvd.

Spokane, WA 99201

drose@spokanecity.org

IP Address: 198.1.39.252

Sent: 3/14/2024 10:17:28 AM

Viewed: 3/15/2024 8:58:44 AM

Signed: 3/15/2024 8:58:51 AM

Sent: 3/15/2024 8:58:52 AM

Viewed: 3/15/2024 9:22:50 AM

Signed: 3/15/2024 9:23:11 AM

Sent: 3/15/2024 9:23:14 AM

Viewed: 3/15/2024 11:30:12 AM

Signed: 3/15/2024 11:39:30 AM

Sent: 3/15/2024 11:39:31 AM

Viewed: 3/15/2024 11:40:13 AM

Signed: 3/15/2024 11:40:45 AM

#### **Certificate Of Completion**

**Envelopeld Stamping: Enabled** 

Envelope Id: 9B9D70FADA8F4EC2B3B9A6A456F871A0

Subject: OPR 2024-0183 FINAL AGREEMENT AFSCME LOCAL 270

Source Envelope:

Document Pages: 40 Signatures: 7 **Envelope Originator:** Certificate Pages: 6 Initials: 0 Daniel Rose

AutoNav: Enabled Stamps: 1

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US &

Canada)

**Record Tracking** 

Status: Original Holder: Daniel Rose Location: DocuSign

Jeni & Hote

Greg Breman

anna Hostetler

Michael J Piccolo

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Signature Adoption: Uploaded Signature Image

Using IP Address: 198.1.39.252

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style Using IP Address: 162.17.167.233

drose@spokanecity.org 3/14/2024 10:09:07 AM

Signer Events Signature **Timestamp** 

Terri L. Pfister tpfister@spokanecity.org

City Clerk City of Spokane

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(None)

**Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:** 

Not Offered via DocuSign

Greg Beeman gregb@council2.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(None)

**Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:** 

Accepted: 3/15/2024 9:22:50 AM ID: 125fae26-cb64-4613-a92e-626d6d46dc15

Anna Hostetler

ahostetler@spokanecity.org

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 198.1.39.252

**Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:** 

Accepted: 3/15/2024 11:30:12 AM ID: 2ce7c936-5bff-4bff-8b6b-22720b3eccf3

Michael J Piccolo

mpiccolo@spokanecity.org

City Attorney

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication

(None)

Using IP Address: 198.1.39.252

**Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:** Accepted: 3/15/2024 11:40:13 AM

ID: a5b4dbda-b470-4409-ac31-4f75dfa742a9

Signer Events	Signature	Timestamp
Michael Ormsby mormsby@spokanecity.org City Attorney Security Level: Email, Account Authentication (None)	Michael Ormsby  Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style Using IP Address: 198.1.39.252	Sent: 3/15/2024 1:57:46 PM Resent: 3/18/2024 9:29:34 AM Viewed: 3/19/2024 1:28:11 PM Signed: 3/19/2024 1:28:44 PM
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: Accepted: 3/19/2024 1:28:11 PM ID: ad809835-ac0b-4952-b2d6-6c88fd8a87ef		
Lisa Brown Ibrown@spokanecity.org Mayor City of Spokane Security Level: Email, Account Authentication (None)	Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style Using IP Address: 198.1.39.252	Sent: 3/15/2024 11:40:46 AM Resent: 3/19/2024 1:28:48 PM Resent: 3/22/2024 8:06:34 AM Resent: 3/25/2024 8:58:32 AM Viewed: 3/26/2024 4:14:28 PM Signed: 3/26/2024 4:15:17 PM
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: Not Offered via DocuSign		
Terri L. Pfister tpfister@spokanecity.org City Clerk City of Spokane Security Level: Email, Account Authentication (None)	Jini HAJaka	Sent: 3/26/2024 4:15:18 PM Viewed: 3/26/2024 5:47:27 PM Signed: 3/26/2024 5:50:52 PM
	Signature Adoption: Uploaded Signature Image Using IP Address: 198.1.39.252	

### **Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:**Not Offered via DocuSign

**Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:**Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events	Signature	Timestamp
Editor Delivery Events	Status	Timestamp
Agent Delivery Events	Status	Timestamp
Intermediary Delivery Events	Status	Timestamp
Certified Delivery Events	Status	Timestamp
Carbon Copy Events	Status	Timestamp
Sarah Cannon scannon@spokanecity.org	COPIED	Sent: 3/19/2024 1:28:46 PM
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication (None)		

Witness Events	Signature	Timestamp
Notary Events	Signature	Timestamp
Envelope Summary Events	Status	Timestamps
Envelope Sent	Hashed/Encrypted	3/14/2024 10:17:28 AM

Envelope Summary Events	Status	Timestamps
Envelope Updated	Security Checked	3/15/2024 1:57:46 PM
Envelope Updated	Security Checked	3/15/2024 1:57:46 PM
Envelope Updated	Security Checked	3/15/2024 1:57:46 PM
Envelope Updated	Security Checked	3/15/2024 1:57:46 PM
Envelope Updated	Security Checked	3/15/2024 1:57:46 PM
Certified Delivered	Security Checked	3/26/2024 5:47:27 PM
Signing Complete	Security Checked	3/26/2024 5:50:52 PM
Completed	Security Checked	3/26/2024 5:50:52 PM
Payment Events	Status	Timestamps
Electronic Decord and Cignoture Disclosure		

**Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure** 

#### CONSUMER DISCLOSURE

From time to time, SHI International Corp OBO City of Spokane (we, us or Company) may be required by law to provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign, Inc. (DocuSign) electronic signing system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to these terms and conditions, please confirm your agreement by clicking the 'I agree' button at the bottom of this document.

#### **Getting paper copies**

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after signing session and, if you elect to create a DocuSign signer account, you may access them for a limited period of time (usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a \$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the procedure described below.

#### Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures electronically is described below.

#### Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format, and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such paper notices or disclosures. To indicate to us that you are changing your mind, you must withdraw your consent using the DocuSign 'Withdraw Consent' form on the signing page of a DocuSign envelope instead of signing it. This will indicate to us that you have withdrawn your consent to receive required notices and disclosures electronically from us and you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents from us.

#### All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically

Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures

electronically from us.

#### How to contact SHI International Corp OBO City of Spokane:

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically, to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:

To contact us by email send messages to: klund@spokanecity.org

#### To advise SHI International Corp OBO City of Spokane of your new e-mail address

To let us know of a change in your e-mail address where we should send notices and disclosures electronically to you, you must send an email message to us at klund@spokanecity.org and in the body of such request you must state: your previous e-mail address, your new e-mail address. We do not require any other information from you to change your email address..

In addition, you must notify DocuSign, Inc. to arrange for your new email address to be reflected in your DocuSign account by following the process for changing e-mail in the DocuSign system.

#### To request paper copies from SHI International Corp OBO City of Spokane

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided by us to you electronically, you must send us an e-mail to klund@spokanecity.org and in the body of such request you must state your e-mail address, full name, US Postal address, and telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at that time, if any.

To withdraw your consent with SHI International Corp OBO City of Spokane To inform us that you no longer want to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic format you may:

i. decline to sign a document from within your DocuSign session, and on the subsequent page, select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may; ii. send us an e-mail to klund@spokanecity.org and in the body of such request you must state your e-mail, full name, US Postal Address, and telephone number. We do not need any other information from you to withdraw consent.. The consequences of your withdrawing consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..

Required hardware and software

Operating Systems:	Windows® 2000, Windows® XP, Windows
	Vista®; Mac OS® X
Browsers:	Final release versions of Internet Explorer® 6.0
	or above (Windows only); Mozilla Firefox 2.0
	or above (Windows and Mac); Safari <sup>™</sup> 3.0 or
	above (Mac only)
PDF Reader:	Acrobat® or similar software may be required
	to view and print PDF files
Screen Resolution:	800 x 600 minimum
Enabled Security Settings:	Allow per session cookies
_	

<sup>\*\*</sup> These minimum requirements are subject to change. If these requirements change, you will be asked to re-accept the disclosure. Pre-release (e.g. beta) versions of operating systems and browsers are not supported.

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive materials electronically

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please verify that you were able to read this electronic disclosure and that you also were able to print on paper or electronically save this page for your future reference and access or that you were able to e-mail this disclosure and consent to an address where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further, if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format on the terms and conditions described above, please let us know by clicking the 'I agree' button below.

By checking the 'I agree' box, I confirm that:

- I can access and read this Electronic CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC RECEIPT OF ELECTRONIC CONSUMER DISCLOSURES document; and
- I can print on paper the disclosure or save or send the disclosure to a place where I can print it, for future reference and access; and
- Until or unless I notify SHI International Corp OBO City of Spokane as described above, I consent to receive from exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made available to me by SHI International Corp OBO City of Spokane during the course of my relationship with you.